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MINUTES OF THE MEETING NOVEMBER 4, 2024 
 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Good evening ladies and gentlemen and welcome to Canton City Council.  

If everyone would please turn their cell phones to vibrate, we would appreciate it. With a quorum being present, 

the Chair calls this meeting of Canton City Council to order. Roll call please, Madam Clerk. 

 

ROLL CALL TAKEN BY CLERK WOOD: 

11 COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: (JOHN MARIOL, JAMES BABCOCK, LOUIS GIAVASIS, 

CRYSTAL SMITH, GREG HAWK, BRENDA KIMBROUGH, JASON SCAGLIONE, CHRIS SMITH , 

ROBERT FISHER, JONATHAN COOKS & RICHARD SACCO)  

  

ELEVEN COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT (MEMBERS MORRIS ABSENT) 

 

CLERK WOOD:  Eleven present, one absent, Madam President.   

 

EXCUSING MEMBERS 
PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we excuse Member Morris from tonight’s meeting. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK:  Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to excuse Member Morris from this 

evenings meeting. Are there any remarks?…Hearing none, roll call vote please. 

 

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD:  Eleven yeas, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Member Morris is excused from this 

evening’s meeting. Tonight’s invocation will be given by Ward 7 Council Member and Majority Leader, John 

Mariol. And if you’ll all please stand and remain standing for the Pledge of Allegience. 

 

The regular meeting of Canton City Council was held on November 4, 2024 at 7:00 P.M. in the Canton City 

Council Chamber.  The roll call was taken (see above) by Clerk of Council, Jill M. Wood.  The invocation was 

given by Council Member John Mariol. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by President Bates Aylward. 

 

AGENDA CORRECTIONS AND CHANGES 
PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Leader. We are now under Agenda Corrections and Changes. 

Leader Mariol.  

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we suspend Rule 22A to add second readings Ordinances #6 

through #18 to this evening’s agenda.  

 

MEMBER BABCOCK:  Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved… 

 

MEMBER BACOCK: Second. 
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PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: (Laughs) Thank you. It’s been moved and seconded to suspend Rule 22A 

to add second readings to Ordinances #6 through #18 to this evenings Agenda. Are there any remarks?... 

Hearing none, roll call vote, please.  

 

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD:  Eleven yeas, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinances #6 through #18 are now a 

legal part of your agenda. Pursuant… to Rule 12B, we will move public speaks to right before Miscellaneous 

Business. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Public Hearings, and we have none for this evening.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Old Business. Is there any Old Business this evening? 

 

MEMBER SMITH: Yes, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Absolutely, Member Smith. 

 

MEMBER SMITH: I would like to uh… thank the young lady last week for coming down and discussing 

Skyline Terrace. Since then, I have talked to her. We have had pictures that was being sent… to the project 

manager. And also the project manager would like to come and speak to Council in regards to the issues that 

were brought forth. So, I’m going to work with… uh… Jill on when and how he can speak. And I just want to 

thank them for coming down and letting us know about those issues because if you hadn’t, we would’ve 

never known about them. So, thank you so very much and hopefully we can get that solved. Thank you. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you very mu… much Member Smith. Are… is there any other 

Old Business to discuss? Alright, thank you. 

 

INFORMAL RESOLUTIONS 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Informal Resolutions and we have none for this 

evening. 

COMMUNICATIONS 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Communications. Let the journal know… show that all 

Communications are received as read.  

 

NOTE: ALL COMMUNICATIONS, WHICH FOLLOW, LISTED BY AGENDA TITLE, ARE ON FILE  

IN THEIR ENTIRETY, IN THE COUNCIL OFFICE WITH THE AGENDA ITEMS FILE DATED 

NOVEMBER 4, 2024. 

1. REQ LEG FOR THE STATEMENT OF SERVICES - 2707 FULTON DR NW AREA - 2024 

ANNEXATION (TYPE 2). - ANNEXATION CHAIRMAN MORRIS 
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2. REQ TRF CITY OWNED PROP TO DAVID DECHIARA VIA CANTON COMMUNITY 

IMPROVEMENT CENTER; EMERGENCY (PARCELS 206004 & 206005, @ 4TH ST NW & 

BEDFORD AVE NW). - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR HARDESTY 

 

3. REQ MAYOR OR SERV DIR. ENTER ARPA SUBAWARD AGMT WITH CCIC; EMERGENCY. - 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR HARDESTY 

 

4. REQ LEG FOR MAPLE AVE. NE SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJ GP 1374; EMERGENCY. -

SERVICE DIRECTOR HIGHMAN 

 
ORDINANCES AND FORMAL RESOLUTIONS FOR FIRST READING 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Ordinances and Formal Resolutions for their First 

Reading. Madam Clerk, would you read Ordinance #5. 

 

NOTE: PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD CALLED UPON CLERK WOOD TO READ ORDINANCE #5 

FOR THEIR FIRST READING BY TITLE AS REQUIRED BY STATE LAW, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

O#5.  (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

SERVICE TO ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONTRACT WITH 

BURGESS & NIPLE LTD. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $278,100 FOR THE 

SANITARY SEWER ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE; AND DECLARING 

THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 Referred to Finance Committee 

 

CLERK WOOD: Madam President. 

 

ORDINANCES & FORMAL RESOLUTIONS FOR SECOND READING 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. We are now under Ordinances and Formal Resolutions for their 

Second Reading. Madam Clerk, would you please begin with Ordinance #6. 

 

NOTE: PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD CALLED UPON CLERK WOOD TO READ ORDINANCES #6 

THROUGH #18 FOR THEIR SECOND READING BY TITLE AS REQUIRED BY STATE LAW, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

O#6.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

SERVICE TO ENTER INTO A JOB CREATION AGREEMENT WITH PINNACLE 

CARE PROVIDERS PURSUANT TO THE CITY'S INCENTIVE PROGRAMS; AND 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY  

 

O#7.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF LOTS 3587 

AND 3588; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (HABITAT 

FOR HUMANITY, 2000 BLK OF TUSC ST. E, WARD 4) 
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O#8.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF LOTS 27095 

AND 27096; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (HABITAT 

FOR HUMANITY, 334 GOBEL AVE NE, WARD 4)  

 

O#9.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF LOTS 22526 

AND 22527; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (HABITAT 

FOR HUMANITY, 2157 6TH ST. NE, WARD 4) 

 

O#10.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF LOTS 22775, 

22776, 22777, 22778, 35216 AND 35217; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN 

EMERGENCY (HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, 2500 BLK OF 7TH ST. NE, WARD 4) 

 

O#11.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF PART OF 

OUTLOT 915 AND ALL OF LOT 40096; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN 

EMERGENCY (IRONROCK CAPITAL INC., 1201 MILLERTON ST. SE., WARD 4) 

 

O#12.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF PART OF 

OUTLOT 590; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (JAMES 

SCHMIDT AND CHERYL STEELE, 2951 BALDWIN AVE NE, WARD 6) 

  

O#13.  (2ND RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 217/2024 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY TO ENTER INTO 

AGREEMENT FOR AND ACCEP $625,000 IN GRANT FUNDS FROM THE FY2024 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED POLICING SERVICES GRANT; AUTHORIZING THE 

AUDITOR TO RENAME FUND 2789 2012 COPS HIRING PROGRAM GRANT 

FUND TO 2024 COPS HIRING PROGRAM GRANT FUND; AMENDING 

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO 

BE AN EMERGENCY  (SUPP APPROP FR 2789 2024 COPS HIRING GRANT FUND 

TO 2789 102001 POLICE ADMIN - OTHER) 

 

O#14.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

SAFETY TO ENTER INTO ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO RESPOND TO 

THE 303 ELGIN AVE. NW DEMOLITION; AUTHORIZING THE AUDITOR TO 

PAY ANY MORAL OBLIGATIONS FROM RESPONDING TO THIS EMERGENCY 

SITUATION; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT WITH BUTCHER AND SON TO PERFORM THE 

DEMOLITION; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

O#15.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

SERVICE TO ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH 

BURGESS & NIPLE LTD. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $267,304 FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RELATED TO THE 2025 LARGE DIAMETER SEWER 

CLEANING AND INSPECTION PROJECT; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE 

AN EMERGENCY 
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O#16.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

SERVICE TO: ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT IN AN 

ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $115,000; ADVERTISE, RECEIVE BIDS, AWARD, 

AND ENTER INTO ONE OR MORE CONTRACTS FOR THE 15TH ST. NW AREA 

STREETSCAPE AND NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, GP 1438; 

AND ENTER INTO ONE OR MORE CONTRACTS FOR THIS PROJECT UTILIZING 

ANY PROCUREMENT PROCESS AUTHORIZED BY LAW; WAIVES THE 

INFORMAL RESOLUTION REQUIREMENTS OF CANTON CODIFIED 

ORDINANCE 105.09 FOR PURCHASES AND CONTRACTS RELATED TO THIS 

PROJECT; AUTHORIZES THE AUDITOR TO PAY ALL MORAL OBLIGATIONS 

FOR CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERS THAT ARE OTHERWISE APPROVED BY 

THE BOARD OF CONTROL; AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 

61/2024; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (SUPP APPROP 

FR 2175 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IMP. FUND TO 2175 202050 15TH ST. NW 

AREA STREETSCAPE AND NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT PROJ, GP 1438 - 

OTHER) 

  

O#17.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

SERVICE TO: ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT IN AN 

ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $58,000 FOR THE 11TH ST. SE IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT, GP 1144 (11TH ST SE PROJECT); ENTER INTO A CONTRACT 

CHANGE ORDER WITH S.E.T., INC. IN AN ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $675,000 

FOR ADDITIONAL IMPROVEMENTS ON CHERRY AVE. SE AS PART 

OF THE 11TH ST SE PROJECT; ENTER INTO ONE OR MORE CONTRACTS IN 

AN ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $100,000 FOR DESIGN OF THE SHERRICK ROAD 

AREA NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, GP 1465 (SHERRICK 

PROJECT); ADVERTISE, RECEIVE BIDS, AWARD, AND ENTER INTO ONE OR 

MORE CONTRACTS FOR THE SHERRICK PROJECT; AND ENTER INTO ONE OR 

MORE CONTRACTS FOR THESE PROJECTS UTILIZING ANY PROCUREMENT 

PROCESS AUTHORIZED BY LAW; WAIVES THE INFORMAL RESOLUTION 

REQUIREMENTS OF CANTON CODIFIED ORDINANCE 105.09 FOR PURCHASES 

AND CONTRACTS RELATED TO THIS PROJECT; AUTHORIZES THE AUDITOR 

TO PAY ALL MORAL OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERS THAT 

ARE OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF CONTROL; AMENDING 

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO 

BE AN EMERGENCY (SUPP APPROP FR 2175 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IMP. 

FUND TO 2175 202095 11TH ST. IMPROV. PROJ, GP 1144 - OTHER; 2175 20205 

SHERRICK ROAD AREA NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT PROJ, GP 1465 - 

OTHER) 

 

O#18.  (2ND RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 218/2024  AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO 

BE AN EMERGENCY (2324 NALOXONE ACCESS GRANT FUND TO 2324 

NALOXONE ACCESS GRANT FUND - 700 OTHER DIRECT COSTS) 
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CLERK WOOD: Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Madam Clerk. Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we suspend Statutory Rules on Ordinances #13 and #18. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s moved and seconded to suspend the Statutory Rules on Ordinances #13 

and #18.  Are there any remarks? …Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Eleven yeas, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries. You’ve heard the three readings. Leader. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #13. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #13.  Are there 

any remarks? …Hearing none, roll call vote please. 

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Eleven yeas, Madam President. 

       #13 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 217/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #13 has been adopted. 

Leader.  

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #18. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #18.  Are there 

any remarks? …Hearing none, roll call vote please. 

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Eleven yeas, Madam President. 

       #18 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 218/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Madam Clerk. The motion carries and Ordinance #18 has been 

adopted. 
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ORDINANCES & FORMAL RESOLUTIONS FOR THIRD AND FINAL READING 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Ordinances and Formal Resolutions for their Third, 

Final Reading and vote. Madam Clerk, please begin with Ordinance #19. 

 

NOTE: PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD CALLED UPON CLERK WOOD TO READ THE FOLLOWING 

ORDINANCES #19 THROUGH #22 FOR THEIR THIRD READING BY TITLE AS REQUIRED BY 

STATE LAW, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

O#19.  (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS AMENDED AS ORDINANCE NO. 219/2024 AN ORDINANCE 

AMENDING SECTION 1351.03, AMENDMENTS, DELETIONS AND 

SUPPLEMENTS TO THE INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE, 

OF CHAPTER 1351, PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Leader. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #19. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #19.  Are there 

any remarks? 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Yes, Leader. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL:  I’d like to move to amend Ordinance #19, per the copy in front of all Council. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second, I’m sorry. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that we amend Ordinance #19, per the copy 

before each Council Member. Before we… continue however, I would like briefly Leader, if you would explain 

what that amendment says. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Actually I will uh… turn this over to the Law Director or the Mayor. 

 

LAW DIRECTOR REESE: With respect to this amendment we remove the uh… registration fees for SMHA 

Housing.  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Alright, thank you. Now (inaudible) it’s been moved and seconded that we 

amend Ordinance #19, per the copy before each Council Member. Are there any remarks? 

 

MEMBER SMITH: Madam. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Yes, go ahead. 
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MEMBER SMITH: Yes… uh… on #19 I know we’re getting ready to vote on it. I expressed how I feel about it 

at the last meeting. And this may not concern what we are getting ready to vote on, but after listening to J.R.’s 

uh… you know what he presented tonight. All sounds good and all that, but you know I do have an issue when 

he talked about blighted properties and blighted buildings. And the reason why I say that because, you know 

I’m still having an issue with Hercules Building. And I know that it belongs to the Timken Company and all of 

that, but I consider them as being landlords. And one part of their building I considered as a slum landlord. And 

that building has been sitting like that from administration to administration. And I know that we helped them, 

you know back years ago and they did the front part. And I just talked to John Highman and I understand that 

there’s roundabout. And he can tell you I really… you know… didn’t really got for the roundabout because I 

couldn’t understand why we building a roundabout just to look a blighted building, but you know. And… and I 

appreciate… you know… Stark Metropolitan Housing being taking off of there, but I’m still not going to 

support that; because I still feel like there are good landlords and there are bad landlords, and I don’t think that 

the good landlord should be punished for what the bad landlords are going to do. And I do have an issue 

because I haven’t really understand or gotten any clarity as to well all this money is going and what we’re going 

to do with it. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Uh… are you finished ma’am? 

 

MEMBER SMITH: Yes, I’m finish since nobody… can answer that so, I guess I am finished. (Applause) 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: And I do want to just say right now we’re only voting on the amendment 

which will be to remove SMHA. After that, there will be a full vote on whether or not to pass the actual 

ordinance as amended. So, I just want to uh…. 

 

MEMBER SMITH: Right… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: …clarify that. So, uh… other comment. 

 

MEMBER GIAVASIS: Not on the amendment, no. 

 

MEMBER SMITH: You said what? 

 

MEMBER GIAVSIS: Not on the amendment. 

 

MEMBER SMITH: Oh, okay. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Are there any other comments under the amendment that has been 

proposed? Alright… hearing none, it’s been moved and seconded that you amend Ordinance #19 per the copy.  

By voice vote all in favor of the amendment signify by saying aye. All opposed no. 

 

NO REMARKS    AMENDMENT PASSED UNANIMOUSLY BY VOICE VOTE 

       (MEMBERS MARIOL & CRYSTAL SMITH  ABSTAINED, MEMBER CHRIS SMITH VOTED NAY)  

        

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Okay… abstained… okay. Did you get that Madam Clerk?  

 

CLERK WOOD: Yes I did. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Okay. 
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MEMBER SMITH: Did she get Crystal abstaining? 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Yes. 

 

MEMBER SMITH: Oh, okay. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: … she abstained. Okay, I have that as two abstenstions, and one no. They 

ayes do have it, however uh… 

 

MEMBER SMITH: We sure… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Well wait a minute maybe they don’t because Frank’s not here.  

 

UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMAN: What is the mark on it. 

 

(Multiple conversation between Council members) 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: 1… 2… 3… 4… 5… 6… 7, yes. 

 

MEMBER SMITH: So it was enough to… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: To amend… 

 

MEMBER SMITH: Okay. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Only to amend. 

 

MEMBER SMITH: Okay. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: That does not mean it’s enough to pass. 

 

MEMBER SMITH: Right. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Okay… alright so we’re going to move now to the next segment. Uh… but 

it has been moved and seconded that… you know we amend… that passed. So the ayes do have that. However, 

now we have to vote on the actual. Leader. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Yes.  

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #19, as amended.  

 

MEMBER BABCOCK:  Second. 

 

AMENDMENT 

 Pursuant to Rule 39, I move to amend Agenda Item No. 19 by amending the current pending ordinance 

with the attached revised ordinance. 
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PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Alright, it’s been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #19 as amended. 

Now are there further remarks, which feel free if you have further remarks under the actual Ordinance as 

proposed, as amended? So, are there any further comments under the Ordinance itself, now that it’s been 

amended. 

 

MEMBER GIAVASIS AND MEMBER HAWK: Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Yes, Member Giavasis. 

 

MEMBER GIAVASIS: I just for the record want to uh… make it clear that you know from the presentation that 

Mr. Rinaldi gave tonight. Uh… the city is making progress with the use of these fees. Uh… to answer about 

where that money is going and being used, is my understanding that there was a lawsuit… uh… that was settled 

uh where… that… that… it was uh… we were told exactly how those funds were going to go and where they 

are going to be used. I think J.R., tonight, gave a pretty good outline on how those funds were going to be used. 

And we can also see from that presentation that right now that that fund that does everything that he went 

through his presentation tonight is operation at a serious deficit. So, if the city is going to continue to end that 

progress, they city doesn’t have a choice but to increase fees of some nature. Uh… if it’s outlined in this uh… 

ordinance. Uh… I’ve had several conversations with landlords, I’ve had uh… several conversations with the 

Mayor. The Mayor has given me his word that we are going to look at… ways possibly to… relieve uh… the 

financial burden on those landlords that are doing things right. And those landords that continue to operate their 

rental properties, as an example some of those pictures tonight where the houses aren’t even habitable… uh… 

should pay those fees. Uh… I asked the Law Director, tonight, to look into the possibility of some of what those 

remedies might be… for the landlords that are operating and doing things correctly… uh…keeping their 

buildings up… uh without violations, code violations and things like that to make sure you know the rental 

properties are liveable. Uh, I do believe that the landlords should… uh… be given some relief for their efforts 

and make sure their doing it the right way. Uh… I trust that the Mayor uh… is going to hold those meeting like 

he told me he was going to so that way we can find some type of consenses on how to… uh… relieve that 

financial burden on the landlords that doing it right in the first place, going forward. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Member Giavasis. Are there further comments? 

 

MEMBER HAWK: Madam Presdient. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Yes, Member Hawk. 

 

MEMBER HAWK: We just excused SMHA the biggest landlord in this city. The cost would’ve been thirty cent 

a day for the fees… thirty cents a day… for the $110.00. Yet, they pay the top three people at SMHA… this is 

salaries alone, this is not a complete benefits package, Six…three… excuse me $370.00 a day. Do the math 

folks, figure it out. And again in eight years we haven’t raised the resgistraion fee. You break that down it 

comes to eight cents a day. Thank you. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Member Hawk. Are there further comments on this Ordinance 

as amended? Okay… hearing none, it’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #19 as amended. 

So, and being no further comment, roll call, vote please. 

 

NO REMARKS                    ROLL CALL 7 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 3 ABSTAINED 

(MEMBERS MARIOL, CRYSTAL SMITH AND COOKS ABSTAINED, MEMBER CHRIS SMITH VOTED 

NAY) 
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CLERK WOOD: Madam President that’s seven yeas, one nay, and three abstensions.  

 

                        #19 ADOPTED AS AMENDED AS ORDINANCE NO. 219/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Alright, the motion does carry. Ordinance #19 is amended however, has 

not gotten enough votes to take place as an emergency with seven votes, but it has carried. Alright… Ordinance 

#20 please, Madam Clerk. 

 

O#20.  (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 220/2024 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

ORDINANCE NO. 10/2024, AS AMENDED, TO ESTABLISH THE ATTACHED 

EXHIBIT AS THE CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR THE AUDITOR’S OFFICE 

MANAGEMENT AND NON-BARGAINING PERSONNEL EMPLOYED BY THE 

CITY OF CANTON; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #20. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #20.  Are there 

any remarks under this Ordinance?...Hearing none, roll call vote please.  

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Eleven yeas, Madam President. 

       #20 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 220/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #20 is adopted. Ordinance 

#21, please. 

      

O#21.  (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 221/2024 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY TO ENTER INTO 

AGREEMENT FOR AND ACCEPT $13,937.99 IN GRANT FUNDS FROM THE 2024 

PATRICK LEAHY BULLETPROOF VEST PARTNERSHIP GRANT AND TO 

ENTER INTO CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE OF APPROXIMATELY 30 

BULLET PROOF VESTS FOR THE MEMEBERS OF THE CANTON POLICE 

DEPARTMENT; AUTHORIZING THE AUDITOR TO RENAME FUND 2790 2017 

EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL GRANT TO 2024 PATRICK LEAHY 

BULLETPROOF VEST GRANT FUND; AMENDING APPROPRIATION 

ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN 

EMERGENCY (SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 2790 2024 PATRICK 

LEAHY BULLET PROOF VEST GRANT FUND TO 2790 102001 2024 PATRICK 

LEAHY BULLET PROOF VEST GRANT - OTHER) 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Leader Mariol. 



COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS JOURNAL 112  JOURNAL PAGE 455 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING NOVEMBER 4, 2024 
 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #21. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #21.  Are there 

any remarks?...Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Eleven yeas, Madam President. 

       #21 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 221/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you the Ordinance… uh… the motion carries and Ordinance #21 is 

adopted. Ordinance #22, please. 

 

O#22.  (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 222/2024 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

THE CLERK OF COUNCIL TO CERTIFY TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR UNPAID 

AND DELINQUENT CHARGES FOR SERVICES PERFORMED BY AND/OR ON 

BEHALF OF THE CITY OF CANTON BUILDING AND CODE DEPARTMENT 

DURING CALENDER YEAR 2023 FOR MOWING AND LITTER CLEAN UP; AND 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Leader. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #22. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #22.  Are there 

any remarks under this Ordinance?...Hearing none, roll call vote please.  

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Eleven yeas, Madam President. 

       #22 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 222/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #22 had been adopted.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENT OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are under the Announcement of Committee Meetings. For everyone’s 

information, the office will closed Monday November 11th, due to Veteran’s Day. So, our next meeting will not 

be until Monday, November 18th, 2024. Committee Meetings will start at 6:45. Uh… Finance Committee…  

 

Member Giavasis… Finance Committee. 

 

MEMBER GIAVASIS: I’m sorry. 
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PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: That’s okay. 

 

MEMBER GIAVASIS: Madam Chair…Finance… Madam… uh Madam President, Finance will meet at that 

time. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, very much. 

 

PUBLIC SPEAKS 
PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Okay. Alright, we are now under Public Speaks, and we have 16 speakers 

this evening. Many of you have been here and you know, but uh… if you please approach the podium and… 

give us your name and residential address. And you can monitor your time uh… on these screens.  

 

MEMBER GIAVASIS: Make sure the mics turned on. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: I know. Nothing’s ever easy. Thank you.  

 

CLERK WOOD: Lift it up.  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Out first speaker is Ms. Kimberly Bell…Ms. Bell. 

 

KIMBERLY: Kim Bell 17th St N… 17… 33 75… uh… Morris Ave. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Could you get a little closer to the mic, thank you. 

 

KIMBERLY BELL: 1733… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: …Thanks. (Laughter) 

 

KIMBERLY BELL: Morris Ave. Canton. Okay, so you all have the handout I created. I wanted to… hit on a 

few things because I have to go to the work. 

 

CLERK WOOD: It completely broke. 

 

MEMBER GIAVASIS: Can’t hear you Kim. Kim speak into the mic please.  

 

KIMBERLY BELL: Huh? 

 

MEMBER GIAVASIS: Speak into the mic. 

 

KIMBERLY BELL: Okay. So, I said I wouldn’t talk more… much more about the case while it was pending. 

Well it’s.. it’s been uh… ruled a reckless homicide. How weak is… how… how… that was such a… that… 

he… Kyle Stone presented a weak case to that Grand Jury because three men tortuted that man, Frank, with 

their bare hands and their body weight. I remember on the southwest side, when three men robbed the Clark 

Gas Station. Well, the gentlemen… one of the defendants were shot so they… and he died. So, they all three 

were charged with his murder. Okay, it was ruled a homicide, Frank’s murder was ruled a homicide why wasn’t 

all… three… of those cops charged with reckless homicide or two cops and the bar guy charged with reckless 

homicide? And why didn’t they lady who… who… welcomed the police in by saying “Get him out of here,” 
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why didn’t she get charged with inducing panic? These are questions Kyle Stone should have presented to the 

prosecutor to get a murder conviction… to get a homicide conviction, instead of reckless homicide. When it 

go… when the case goes to court, I hope the Tyson man here, asks them to plead it out; because why risk taking 

it to trial and white women on the… on the uh… jury and white men look at those two officers as their son. And 

go back to the jury room and turn the case around… it was Frank’s fault that he died, and turn this on Frank 

killing himself instead of those two officers and the bar guy. I know how the system works because I been in it 

all my life. And I… once I came out of the system and I kept bumping my head up against that wall and I went 

to paralegal school, I figured you all out. And when I say you all, you white men and you white women, y’all 

going straight to hell. You’re going straight to hell. You know who you are. If you have been racist towards 

black people, you’ve already set… you already determined your fate. You going to hell. I mean it’s just that 

simple. I have more to say, but I have to go to work. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Ms. Bell.  

 

KIMBERLY BELL: And… this is going … I’m going to send this to Al Sharption and make sure the 

prosecutor (inaudible) gets a copy of this too. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Ms. Bell. Our next speaker is Ms. Sue Jacobs, Ms. Jacobs. 

 

SUE JACOBS: I don’t think I need that. First of all, I’m a white woman and I have black grandkids. And I 

don’t appreciate that. And I don’t want to see anybody die… 

 

CLERK WOOD: We do nee… 

 

SUE JACOBS: That’s not what I was talking about… 

 

CLERK WOOD: …We do need you to speak into the mic for our recording system please. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It helps to record. Thank you… 

 

SUE JACOBS: ….Stop that clock… start again.  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD:  Yes just if you… could give it to her. Thank you… 

 

SUE JACOBS: Alright, I’m a white woman and I resent that… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: …And if you could just real quick state your name… your name and your 

address please…. 

 

SUE JACOBS: …Oh Susan Jacobs…  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: … I’m sorry… I’m sorry… 

 

SUE JACOBS: It’s okay. 2322 Gridley Ave NE. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD Okay. 
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SUE JACOBS: I feel sorry for that lady, but I’m a white woman and… I think it’s wrong. I have black 

grandchildren and I don’t like to be put in that category. That’s not right. Anymore, I’m here for the homeless. 

I’m not going to argue that point. I didn’t see anyone go out. Nobody’s told me anything… if anything’s going 

to be done about the homeless. And I thought you were Mayor and you’re Mayor. Okay, I did call you. You call 

me one time and said, “Susan, I’m going to help you out. You’ve been in your house for forty years. You don’t 

have to put up with that.” You never get the decency to call me back, and I’m still putting up with it. With the 

trash and garbage in my yard from a guy that was homeless, that moved in a house. His mother was dead for ten 

years and he moves in. Their… their heat with propane in there. About ten feet from my house. He driving three 

cars around th… and don’t have insurance. He has a thing that he can’t have license for the rest of his life, but 

he’s out there driving. And that’s not even what I wanted to say today. I wanted to talk to you… I didn’t 

know… I’m yelling at him down there. I don’t want to yell at you, I want to talk to you. First of all, I work for 

the Homeless Outreach Team, Steve Roberson. And he’s an ass… sorry. And I was down there when you guys 

shut it down. They… they asked for police officers because there was trouble there. And I wouldn’t want that 

place next to mine, but they have to be somewhere. They’ve got to be somewhere. They can go get a bath in 

there, they could get food, and they can sit there and talk to us, and we can pray for them. Not go downtown, 

they’re sitting all over the place with their carts and stuff with them. I heard they’re not allowed to do that. 

That’s their home, they got to take it with them or it’s going to get stolen. Somebody went down to the… where 

they’re staying at, the camp and took pictures the day after I was here. I don’t know who did it. And the police 

officer, some of them feel sorry those guys and they’re sent out in the street to move them. I mean that’s true 

because that’s a fact. I know where they stay and I also know… what… nevermind. I’m not going to say that. 

I’m not going to bring anybody else in it, but you’re looking up the wrong tree Mayor. I’m just telling you that. 

There’s more people out there that’s doing more damage then the homeless in this town. We have drugs, we 

have them on our street. I tell you to send the police out there to fight with somebody fighting with his… 

mistress or whatever where they’re selling drugs. You could be out getting the real criminals. The police don’t 

have enough people and they’re overworked. And they’re get… and they’re jumping… jumping the gun maybe 

people’s dying that shouldn’t be… I don’t know… you know. And I… I… I agree with you. You know, but 

that’s up to them to tell the story, but you never called me back and I never heard anything on the homeless 

people. If you want to work with me or do something… evidently you done… don’t. Nicolette Able said hi. So 

what do you have? That’s my story and I’m sticking to it. I’ll be back here next Monday. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Ms. Jacobs. (Applause) And if you could leave that 

microphone… yes thank you. Yes, just lay it there. Our next speaker is Mr. Eric Wohlwend? Am I saying that 

correctly. 

 

ERIC WOHLWEND: Very good ma’am. I am Eric Wohlwend from 202 49 St SE. I am a member of Stark 

County Real Estate Investors Association and uh… professional housing provider. Anybody that is here, that 

was in opposition to the Ordinance that just passed… please stand up to oppose resigistration fee increases. 

(Audience members who oppose stand.) So, you can see there’s quite a few of us here… that were against that. 

And I do really want to thank you, thank you everyone. I’d like to thank Councilman Fisher for spending more 

than a half an hour having a really good discussion with me today. So, thank you for that. I appreciate it and I’m 

sure you talked to plenty of other people. Now, we looked at what the bunk… uh… Building Department had 

that was a good presentation. The guy was very happy, in fact. he was excited to take credit for that building at 

3001 West Tuscarawas St. So, let us give him the credit that he deserves for the Building Department. They 

said, “Look at what I did.” Well actually it was my company that did that tugpoint job. It was my company that 

paid more than $30,000.00 to fix the corner of that building. And that wasn’t the problem, it was the tens of 

thousands of dollars, and the months of trying to work with the Building Department, that drove me out of the 

city. It was them just saying, “You’ve got to tugpoint the building,” I said, “Well tell me exactly where. Send 

me a picture of what you want done, I want to work with you.” By the time we finally got that one little corner 
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done they said, “Wow, that’s a great job.” Sent pictures… he was thrilled with the way it was done. We always 

wanted to do that. And he just kept saying, “You have to tugpoint the whole thing.” drug it out the entire 

summer. And that was the last straw. I bought that building from a very bad landlord that was actually 

sentenced to spend 30 days in jail, because he didn’t keep up with his properties. For the next twelve years you 

had virtually no violations when I fixed it up. And if you have any of the building and code reports, look at what 

it looked like when I owned it. And after that, dealing with the Building Department… not the $110.00 fee 

that’s annoying, but just the extra bureaucracy I had to go through. I sold that to another investor to recoup what 

I had into it. It is now sitting vacant. So, let’s give the Building Department full credit for that building. It has 

been empty since about a year after I sold it. It’s boarded up with thousands of dollars in violations on it. That is 

what the Building Department got at 3001 West Tuscarawas St. They talked about all they do. You know what, 

we mow about five thousand yards a year and we don’t gauge our tenants and charge them hundreds of dollars 

for mowing. We… they do six dozen in rehabs… well we did seventy - nine just in 2017. My company fixes up 

more houses then they can get fixed up in the city. And you’re running us out of town. Thank you for your time. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Mr. Wohlwend. (Applause) Our next speaker is Ms. Lila 

Wohlwend. Ms. Wohlwend. 

 

LILA WOHLWEND: My name is Lila Wohlwend, 202 49th St SE in Canton, Ohio. I watched the Code 

presentation just like all of you. And I want to give him some props for finding ways to lower some costs, but I 

do disagree with him when he said that if Code wasn’t involved there would… we would quote, unquote, 

“Never see these success stories.” I been in the real estate industry since 2002 and I’ve watched thousands upon 

thousands of other investors dump piles of money into buying dilapidated homes and fixing them up. They did 

it because they wanted too. They did it because that was their business. Some of them fixed them up and sold 

them. Some of them fixed them up kept them as rentals, but they didn’t do that because some Code Official was 

telling that they should. They did it because they wanted too. Wouldn’t it be great if you guys could set up an 

environment where investors were fighting to get into this city. They wanted to buy these properties. They 

wanted to fix them up. How much would that lower your demolition costs? How many more homes would you 

have on the market that people could be renting and living in? Wouldn’t that help lower rents as well, because 

we would have such a supply, that people would be able to renting them without having to fight over one unit 

because there isn’t enough. Wouldn’t it be great… if… we had… a good working relationship and not the 

frustration that I hear from all of these investors. All these proper… housing providers that want to be working 

in different areas. I work with a lot of people and they don’t want to invest in Canton. They don’t want to buy 

here. In fact, they’ll tell me, “ Look for anything accept for what’s in that city,”  because they don’t like your 

registration fees. The don’t like the… the bureaucracy and red tape of working with Code. And I have watched 

some of those difficult situations. I think you guys need to set up a better environment. You wouldn’t need to 

have any kind of registration fee, if you had the right relationship with the right investors, because they would 

be the ones that would get these from the bad housing providers. And they would be ones fixing them up. So 

encourage the right things so you can get the good ones back in this town. Thank you. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Mrs. Wohlwend. (Applause) Our next… our next speaker is 

Mr. David Kerestes. Mr. Kerestes. 

 

DAVID KERESTES: David Kerestes, 626 Walnut Ave NE. Guess I’m here tonight because I’m going to asking 

for a public record request for Saturday at 3 o’clock, when… this… wheelchair or this stroller is laying there 

and you see somebody getting loaded on to a gurney… and that’s all in front of this bus. Now, I don’t know if 

that woman got hit or fell over, or what happened, but I’m going to ask for that. The reason why I’m going to 

ask for that is because I was accused of that… two crimes down there at that bus garage. One, when I got to 

court I couldn’t speak. The other one I never had a court date for. And I sit here and these people talk about 
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these… unethical conduct by state and Federal Elected Officials. And you guys have eyes, but you cannot see 

and you have ears, but you cannot hear. And so I’m looking at these busses with a bunch of damage to them, 

wondering how many incident reports there are. But I didn’t notice a police officer come. I didn’t notice any 

report. None of that did know and I’m not sure what went on. What I do know is, I stand there and I watched 

them run off the bus garage and run through the stop sign. And under Section 4511-43 you can’t run a stop sign 

unless you have an officer waiving you through, but they run it anyway. It’s amazing and then the pull right into 

the crosswalks… when they’re suppose to stop behind them. And that brings me to Chapter 505-491 where Mr. 

Watkins don’t right them a ticket. So how much selective law do we have? Are… are you an aristocracy? Are 

we just commoners, because I’m wondering. And I hear this man talking about the money he spend and the 

problem he had with Building Department. Well all these fires in the apartments I go look at, and they don’t say 

they’re apartments. They say that it’s a home owner in it. These people are renovating the Building Department 

is missing all this. You’re suppose to have fire ratings that aren’t being accomplish through the incompetence of 

your Building Department. And I’ve had multiple pictures and brought this to the attention of multiple people. 

Uh… quite frankly, you’re killing people while your robbing them. I just want to tell you that. I don’t know of 

you think you’re better than us, but my dad come from the Green Beret and the World Terrorist Command 

Center In Fort Bragg. People ask me, “Are you a Veteran?” Well, no I’m glad I’m not when they’re smoking 

bubble pipes and called The Hells Angels. Selling drugs in the country and around the world. And our 

government doesn’t recognize that our military is running an international crime ring. Under violations of uh… 

US Title Code 8… (inaudible) .332 B Terrorisim Transcending National Bounderies. We got a….(inaudible).  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Mr. Kerestes. Our next speaker is Mr. Paul Billig. Mr Billig if 

you, could step forward and give us your name and residential address.  

 

PAUL BILLIG: Good evening Council. My name is Paul Billig. I live at 5759 Wynnbrook Rd SW. Uh… I 

wanted to first start with… uh thank you Councilman Fisher for his phone call today. Uh… I sent him a phone 

call regarding the registration fees. Uh… I was grateful to uh… get a phone call back from him and have a 

discussion. Uh… sorry that we didn’t see eye to eye on the issue, but I do appreciate the time you gave for that 

so, thank you. Uh… while I was talking to him I was actually in… uh a rehab that I’m working on. I… was a 

science teacher, I quite that job in May. I… started rehabbing houses. So, I apologize for my dress, but uh… I 

just want to say that this is uh… this is what a landlord looks like who cares about the things that they are 

owning and tries to take good care of them. So, I hope you categorize me as that. (Applause) I’ve been putting a 

lot of blood, sweat, and tears into these houses. I’ve… this is the third one in your city that I’ve worked on this 

year. Uh… I hope you catergorize me as a landlord who takes care of those things. I’ve heard some comments 

made to uh… saying that maybe we can work with some of these fees with the people who are following all the 

rules. I’ve been following all the rules with the code. I’ve been working with uh… these inspectors on things 

and been fixing things up. Uh… unfortunately I have to say that that’s just lip service. Uh… because you passed 

it anyway tonight. Uh… you passed it anyway and you’ve fee’d me… uh… even though you might think I’m a 

good landlord uh… if you’ve already decided to fee me anyway, and maybe down the road we’ll figure out 

when I’m good enough that we can… negotiate with me, but right now you’ve passed it and it’s a blanket on the 

people like me. Uh… I want to say that I uh… was in rehab and right next to me is an empty lot uh… from a 

place that was recently demolished. Uh… It was actually there when I bought the property. I came back and 

started fixing it, it was gone. Uh… that’s a missed opportunity. It’s a missed opportunity for people like me who 

can fix it and turn it into somewhere nice and safe and liveable and clean. Uh… it cost you money to demolish 

that. Uh… we saw how much money it has been costing to demolish hundreds of homes around here. Uh… you 

manage to squeeze $50.00 out of me every year… uh for a uh… registration fee. I could’ve saved you tens of 

thousands of dollars with a demolition that you didn’t have do if you let me do my business. So, again… I don’t 

want to uh… I don’t want talk down anybody, but in business there’s two different ways to fix your budget. 

You can increase revenue or you can decrease costs. Uh… you have increased your revenue by $50.00 a year. 
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You’ve probably also increased your cost for making it harder for people like me and other people that want to 

fix uh… properties making it harder for them to work in this city. I already know several people, some of them 

are in this room who refuse, on principle, to do business in the city of Canton. That’s why you have houses that 

are being left… uh… the way that they are. Uh… if you worked with people like me, and made it simple and 

easy for us to do what we do, we could fix your problem at little to no cost to you, if you would just let us. So, 

thank you for your time.  (Applause) 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you Mr. Billig. Our next speaker is Ms. Skylark Bruce… Ms. Bruce. 

 

SKYLARK BRUCE: My name is Skylark Bruce and I live at 2216 Bollinger Ave NE. Wow, charges! Until 

Friday evening many of us thought that Canton would do business as usual as related to the officers who 

murdered Frank Tyson. This city had never held any of it’s officers meaningfully to account for in custody 

deaths. While the charges of reckless homicide are woefully inadquent compared to what Burch and 

Schoenegge did, it is something. We may be the at the beginning of a new pattern of accountability. Beginning 

with the two officers who assaulted Cassie Convern and Jaemiier McElroy. The firings of former officers 

Nicholas Casto and Brandon Momirov this year, are similary new terrority for this city. Most movements 

towards change take time to gather momentum. So, we look forward to more signifigant actions in the future. 

This is the moment to acknowledge all those who have dedicated their time on a Monday evening, to speak their 

truth about injustice from the police department. Those who spoke up in the streets and other meetings, and in 

coffee shops and at dinner tables. This is the moment to thank those who have poured years of their lives, 

decades for some, into laying the foundation we as a community build on today. I don’t know all the names of 

those who spoke up in the 80’s and 90’s or before, but their legacy lives on. I would guess that some who are 

public officals in this room did apply pressure behind closed doors pushing for accountability. If that applies to 

you, thank you. If that’s not you yet, there’s room for you too. You have another opportunity to apply pressure. 

The judge assigned to Camden and Schoenegge is Kristen Farmer. It is a conflict of interest that she is married 

to Alliance Police Department Lt. David Bear. A judge should recuse themselves instead of preside over a 

police accountabily case, when their own spouse is a high ranking local police officer. They married in 2005, 

here in Stark County. The people of Canton are not silent, we are only getting started. We will make this city 

much safer for everyone. We stand with our siblings in bigger cities like Columbus, where just today, a jury 

found Columbus Police Officer Adam Coy guilty of the murder of citizen, Andre Hill. We have a long road to 

hoe, but hoe it we will. Justice for Frank Tyson and Justice Zachary Fornash. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Ms Bruce. Our next speaker is Mr. Ronald Simmons. Mr. 

Simmons… give us your name and residential address for the record thank you. 

 

RONALD SIMMONS:  How are you doing this… this afternoon. Ronald Simmon,s 4619 Greenmeadow Ave. 

NW, Canton. Just uh… few comments, concerning my cousin Frank Tyson. Before we go there, but I like to 

comment on you, Council Smith. You know we had an opportunity… we were looking at buying the uh… hotel 

downtown, then we looked at the bank. And that was one of the things that detoured us. The dilapidation of the 

town. The town is a total disatster if you ask me. It looks terrible. So we had an opportunity, we went to 

Columbus. We paid fifty-four million dollars on 3rd and High. Unfortunately, we took out money elsewhere. 

That’s not the way we want to do business, but in the same respect, when I look at this right now I’ve… I used 

to rent thirty apartments when I was younger. I’ve been coming here for forty years. Forty years when Bob 

Fisher and all them was around. They taught me a lot of things and I had to be involve with council. You have 

to know who they are and you got to know what their playing. I learned a lot. I was respectful to everyone that 

was here. I’ve always been respectful. I asked for a little bit of courtesy, but the Mayor and a couple people to 

have a conversation after my cousin was killed… murdered. I never got a response. They could not talk to me. 

That wasn’t fair, that’s not nice, because I’m a firm believer in love is what solves all these problems. Right 
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now we have no love, is the reason why Frank passed away. Someone just sat there and allowed him to die. It’s 

not right what happened.We need to be sitting down thinking about it. We’ve done our part. I did have the 

opportunity to meet with one gentleman, that I walked in is door and he handled things the way it was suppose 

to be handled. I don’t call out names because some people don’t like to be called out. But some that didn’t want 

to cooperate. They didn’t want anything to do with us, we were criminals. I come to tell you, I’m not a criminal. 

I’m not a bad guy. My family is not a bad guy. And we’ve done our part. You’ve never heard from us, we’ve 

been working with you guys. And well, we couldn’t really work with you because you didn’t respond, but at the 

end of the day we nevere got a response from you. We never really got an appreciation for what was even done 

within our own. I’m not… we… I’m a firm believer you will not blemish my family’s name by terrorizing this 

broke down city, as bad enough as it is. No one wants to come in. And then I was real… I was happy today 

when the police officers there, the union done their job. They put you guys in a position that I have to respect. 

And you guys have to do your job and I respect that, but couldn’t allow things to happen, but I would greatly 

apprecitate it. We did our job, you use us, but don’t missuse us. Saturday, we were used. That is a nothing but a 

political move. Let’s make sure, at the end of the day, that we get justice. And we’re not talking about a slap on 

the wrist and you keep your job. And at the end of the day you get probation. That’s not what we’re asking… 

(inaudible) life for it either, but I thank everyone…(inaudible) bless everyone here tonight. (Applause) 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Mr. Simmons. Our next speaker is Mr. Daniel Gates. Mr. 

Gates. 

 

DANIEL GATES: My name is Daniel Gates… I… I’m from the United States Constitutional Republic. First 

thing I want to talk about is this housing bit. Now, it’s not just landlords who are affected because they’re going 

to have to adjust their prices, their rents… to fit… profit. So, people like me, who rent, are going to be affected 

as well, who are already struggling… to make rent. The next thing, I want to bring your attention to this right 

here that I am wearing this brace. Back in 2019, the police beat the shit out of me, okay… they did. My spine is 

out of socket. I go to work everyday and I cry and bleed and I still do it. They fought me for two years. I still… 

I can’t get any reparations for my spine. Okay, it’s a permanent injury… I’m broken. And I… by the time I’m 

my father’s age, some of your guys age, I probably will not be able to keep on going. I hope I have enough 

saved up by then. Let’s talk about the roads. It’s shit, absolute shit. I’ve called the water department, I’ve let 

them know about their valve covers… which one destroyed my car guys… okay. They said they would do 

something about it. That was a week ago. There’s no cones, we got water valve cover holes that I can stick my 

whole leg in. You want to talk about safety? There ain’t no safety, you guys don’t care about that… you don’t. 

You guys are destroying peoples vehicles. You see more headlights and everything out across this town because 

of your roads… you’re roads. No matter whether you want to say it’s not your road…. through time of driving 

down the some roads on your daily commute, you’re vehicle starts to get broken, hitting potholes, railroad 

tracks, manhole covers, valve… water valve covers. It’s not safe. Your roads aren’t safe. We are not safe. You 

got to do something about it. Uh… it’s to my knowledge that you guys received funding to maintain West Tusc. 

Where’s that money going because it’s not being maintained. It’s cracked. You guys did that road not to long 

ago. It’s suppose to last ten to twenty years. I say ten years because we live in Ohio, and the weather is crap, but 

you’re not fixing it. You’re only fixing the things you want to fix. What you want to make… pretty. You’re 

painting a turd and it’s still a turd… bottom line. So, my question is, which I’m not going to get an answer, what 

are we going to do about fixing these manhole covers, water valve covers? They are indeed a safety concern. As 

I expected… crickets. Well, thank you for your time…(inaudible). 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Mr. Gates. Our next speaker is Mr. Roger Gates… Mr. Gates. 

 

ROGER GATES: My name is Roger Gates, my address is 611 Smith Ave NW. My mom used you call this 

controlled, established living, is what we are heading towards. That’s been forty years ago. I’m seeing it now… 
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I am seeing it. You want us to come and buy into your government programs. I go work forty hours a week… I 

should be able to supply for myself. I shouldn’t have to rely on a government program, which that… just as this 

gentleman stated. Code Enforcement comes in and causes all kind of problems for him. Now, Habitat For 

Humanity puts out a stub… standard… product. Yea you get a house for $100,000.00, you don’t pay any 

interest on it, but now $164,000.00 houses that are being built are the upgraded version. We don’t get the 

pleasure of getting that, because you know what, when is the last time a substantial place has come in to here 

that it’s created some kind of job for us here in Canton, Ohio? Not a $14.00 an hour job, not flipping a burger, 

I’m a… I’m a skilled tradesman. I can’t even find a job because Code Enforcement stops me from being able to 

sit for the test. So, how’s that fair to me? That… that goes back to everybody elses privilege. You guys are 

controlling who is able to do this thing. Me at 55, if I go try and join the trades… I can’t join the trades. Age 

discrimination, but yet it’s allowed. So, my problem is that these houses that you say are affordable housing… 

and this housing is going in… I get into a house I ain’t going to be able to hold onto that house, eventually I’m 

going to loose that house. It’s going to go back to wherever. How is that going to benefit me because I can’t go 

find a job that’s going to substain me to be able to be able to buy a $164,000.00 house. Unless I rely on a  

government program. I shouldn’t have to. I’m an American, I’m free. I work forty hours a week. Now property 

taxes are taking a good chunk of that. Hey… they’re raising property taxes. Okay, so be it. You raise the 

property taxes. You guys are raising it for the rental… the registration fees. That’s being paid… paid… by the 

renters. The owners are not going to take… the loss on it. So, therefore, now somebody is struggling already to 

pay for $400.00 a month in rent or… there rent goes up to $450.00, $475.00. That means they go… like I said 

for myself, without heat, have to decide on whether we’re going to eat tonight, I’m going to make sure that I 

don’t eat but that my are going to eat. That’s realtiy, that’s not where were living at. I hear you guys talking 

about spending millions of dollars here, right. Where is the money that’s going to the community? Not a damn 

penny of it. All that I see you guys spending all this money, but… the community is here and we aint seeing any 

of it. You guys (inaudible). I mean that’s fine. God bless, have a good day. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Mr. Gates. Our next speaker, is I believe it’s Shanna Kirby or 

Shawna Kirby I’m not positive.  

 

SHAWNA KIRBY: Hello there. I…uh…  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: … Just give your… 

 

SHAWNA KIRBY: …I’m Shawna … 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: … just give your… 

 

SHAWNA KIRBY: ...Kirby… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: …Shawna, thank you… 

 

SHAWNA KIRBY: ...and I am homeless. Yes. I live in Stark County as a homeless person in my car and I’m 

very lucky to have it still. There are several… hundred people in this community that have nowhere to go. The 

homeless helpline does not call back. If you leave a voicemail, nothing never gets done. I’m also coming up 

here to ask you guys to eradicate this bill you keep sending to me when you adopted my child without my 

consent. I tried to write my own appeal and take that to the Court of Appeals, only for you to give me a lawyer 

that didn’t file his paperwork. And now my son was given to the highest bider. Which is his grandmother, but 

that doesn’t matter because parental alienation is real. It effects a lot human beings in this community. It’s 

terrible. I wonder how many other mothers and fathers in this local area are having to deal with the same thing. 
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I’m a convicted felon, I haven’t been in trouble since 2011… okay. I worked my way up to a job in Boston 

making $65,000.00 a year with that felony. I’m not a stupid person, but here I am… battered by our community 

and by it’s supposed leaders. We are broken here. There are people on drugs on every fucking corner, pardon 

my language… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: …oh yea, nope. 

 

SHAWNA KIRBY: There are people over here… on the streets. You guys… who paid for those signs that say 

no pandhandling in front of the damn court buildings for real, you know. Those are our dollars, did we ask for 

those signs or is it just an inconvenience for you to look at? Okay, it’s getting hard out here and we shouldn’t be 

doing this to the people that build your community. We shouldn’t be making money off of the lower income 

people in this community. It’s devastating the next generations. Do you not see what your doing? You’re setting 

it up. What, 80% of people that go to prison, their children go to prison. We should be taking care of our 

children. We should to be allowed to speak our minds. We should be able to have ideas and work together and I 

don’t see any of that community action going on here. It’s a cold hearted place and it’s sad. Uh… yea I’d like 

you guys to take away this $105.00 bill because I’m not going to pay you for taking away my child. Uh… so 

that’s to the clerk if possible. If you you guys could eradicate that’d, be great… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Which Clerk… just which Clerk of Courts is it? I don’t believe it’s ours. 

 

SHAWNA KIRBY: This would be for Probate Court… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: …Yea… right… 

 

SHAWNA KIRBY: …because when you go for child adoption, it would be probate… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: … yea we don’t control that. 

 

SHAWNA KIRBY: …the fact of the matter isit should of went to the Supreme Court. My case should’ve went 

to the Supreme Court. I worked very hard on my life to establish a life for my children, but the highest bider 

one. I make $65,000.00 they made $325,000.00. You see what the inequality is. They lower income people here 

are suffering. It’s a class separation issue in our community.  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Ms. Kirby. Our next speaker Ms. Cassandra White. Ms. White. 

 

CASSANDRA WHITE: My name is Cassandra White at 816 2nd St. First off I want to thank Chris for calling 

me today and checking back about that. The Health Department that’s back there that has called and went out to 

the apartments, I appreciate it. My grandchildren that live there appreciate it. Now, if we could get you all to 

listen to us for the fact of change. Not asking for you to talk about us a specific case or the people involved in 

the case. I’m asking that we work together to bring reform to the City of Canton. I’m asking the same thing that 

Bobby DiCello is asked. Let sets sit down and talk. Right, Jason Reese? I went on You Tube Saturday and I  

searched. All I searched through bar was Canton Police. Wow… I would be ashamed to hold a seat of an office 

in this city. Just to clarify and make sure you’re listening. We are not going anywhere! As we all proved on 

Saturday. We all stand united and ready to be the voices of the citizen alive or deceased. I was asked Saturday 

night, “How did you to that press conference and support the Tyson family, when… Officer… Officer Moreno 

is still empoyeed by the Canton Police Department?” Well that’s a simple answer. I do not come here every 

Monday, just to talk about Zachary. I’m here to support and speak on everyone’s pain and injustice. I’m here 

every week so on other family member has to plan a funeral. My life was ruined eleven months ago and I don’t 
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want to be alive, but just to clarify I will not kill myself so don’t put a hold on me. So, if I have to be here then I 

will continue all of our fights, because lack of accessive force… not lack of, I’m sorry. All the accessive force, 

no de-escalation being done, no accountability by your officers, we’ve all had to become one big family. I’m 

sure you all saw the picture in the Repository of all of here together. I’m many more people do you want to add 

to that picture? Ms. Perry, why are those two officers still employeed by the City of Canton? Do your job, but 

you don’t know how though. Justice for all the people of Canton the police have killed or harmed… have been 

killed, I’m sorry, or harmed. And prayers for all of you because I don’t know how you sleep at night. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Ms. White. Our next speaker is Mr. Justin Nicely. Mr. Nicely. 

 

JUSTIN NICELY: I’m Justin Nicely. I’m the creater and founder of the Canton Hall of Shame Advocacy Group 

Page, for everyone here in the local community. I am a single father advocate, I am a single parent family 

advocate. Now we the people… we’ve been obviously making strides so we’re going to ahead and keep justice 

going. Alright, now I’m making a declaration tonight, that the Canton Hall of Shame, we’ve reached 

unprecedented milestone after almost four years of investigations, audits, backfinding, and fighting this system 

where it’s been broken at. We’re going to be celebrating our one year anniversary going on public platform as a 

voice for you and us… we the people. Now that everyone is following this page in the single fathers life and has 

supported the cause for the fight for the better of our community, I am here to tell you from the depts of my soul 

personally… I want to thank each and every single one of you. Y’all are the heroes here. You, each and every 

single one of ya’ll are the heros here. Okay, you guys are the ones that make this right. Last week, I was here a 

broken man alright. I… I… I… had a loss of faith in every single thing I believed in. The feelings that I had … 

everything I had I felt it was in vain. Everything I’ve been doing you know. I was literally reliving the 

nightmare of family five years ago. You know they’re going to take my kids, they’re going to take my freedom, 

they’re going to throw me in jail… you know. And something amazing happened, I had a change of 

perspective. Alright, and uh… not only did I have a change of perspective, it made me realize it’s how much 

harder I’m going to be pushing now. Now uh… what happened is we the people stepped up and we came 

through as a village… okay. Y’alls encouragement to have me keep fighting for change was absolutely mind 

blowing. This support that I was shown by every since person has awaken me to a whole new level importance 

of what it is that I’m doing and how badly it needs to be done. Made me realize that all of us, every single one 

of us, we’re not irrelevant. Listen to that, we are not irrelevant. And what you are doing, it is making a 

difference. It’s making a change so don’t stop fighting. Now we as a community and the masses… we’re going 

to be standing unified as one. And I’ve been… reminded of the power that we all hold when we all stand 

together. Now with that being said, I’m making a… pub… publicly sworn, solemn vow to everyone here that 

I’m going to fight these unlawful policies. I’m going to get fathers back in the children’s lives. I’m going to 

continue to expose the corrupt and those that want to continue to abuse their postitions. And I’m going to also 

give the public back the transparency that it damn well deserves. And I’m going to stand behind every single 

one of you. And all I’m going to ask from this room tonight… uh… regardless of your seat, your role, your 

title… if you’re willing to sit there and make our community a better place; I’m asking you right now, to stand 

with me. Stand up right now if you’re willing to join us and make this a better community. Stand up right now if 

you’re willing to join me in this fight. There’s your answer. There’s your answer, there’s my backing. Now 

when are you coming to… (inaudible). 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you Mr. Nicely. (Applause) Our next speaker is Mr. Nickolas 

Goodnight. Mr. Goodnight. 

 

NICKOLAS GOODNIGHT: Good evening. My name is Nickolas Goodnight and I’m one of the investors in 

this city that is considering taking my business elsewhere. And I have a case study for you to let you know why, 

to backup what these guys are saying. I don’t buy houses from uh… people that are having an average house. I 



COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS JOURNAL 112  JOURNAL PAGE 466 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING NOVEMBER 4, 2024 
 

buy houses that should be torn down. It’s one of my hobbies, I took it over from my grandpa. And when I’m 

done, a lot of them I lived in myself. My houses are gorgeous and nothing against these guys, I have the nicest 

houses in this city. Uh… two examples with Building Code, the first one, uh… last… two years ago I damaged 

my eye. I hired a guy to put a roof on for me and it was done in a weekend. And then after that I got a phone 

call from Building Code that said, “Hey, uh… now you need to put siding on the side of the house.” I was 

working on other houses (inaudible) I said, “Okay.” I hired, not a small siding company. I paid $25,000.00 

dollars to have a two bedroom sided. Two weeks later I get a phone call from Building Code that said, “The 

building company did not pull a permit.” Okay, I was literally in Cleveland Clinic, here’s the paper that says I 

was, and I spoke Rinaldi about this. He said “Okay.” So they… uh… Building Code went to the… the 

contractor and they got their permit. Two days after that I got a note on my door from Building Code that said I 

was in violation for my porch light. This house does not have electric. This house does not have plumbing. It 

has a brand new roof, brand new siding, and is the best looking house on the road, but I got a letter about my 

porch light that doesn’t have electric. I called Housing Code I said, “Hey can I talk to someone about this?” they 

said, “Sure.” I’m not going to give any person’s name out here, but that person would not talk me. I said, 

“Okay, I will come down to your office.” Okay, I go down to the office. The person would not see me. Now the 

person I will mention is Mr. Hoffman. Mr. Hoffman and I have had a relationship forever. The guy is 

phenomenal. He helps me, he answers my calls, I have his cell phone number. The guys on top of his game. I 

said Mr. Hoffman this is the letter I have, please tell me what I need to do about my porch light so I’m not going 

to get a fine. He says, “Nick, I’ll be right back with you.” He goes to talk to the other the other inspector, comes 

back and he said, “Well nothing.” He said, “Every person on that block got a violation and you happen to be in 

that line.” I said, “Okay… so what do you want me to do?” He said, “ Don’t worry about it.” A couple days 

later, and I have all these text messages and emails. I have that same inspector, not Mr. Hoffman, on another 

issues, I called the person back and I said, “Hey, what do I need to do about this?” She said, “Nothing” I go, 

“Okay… what can I do?” “Well you’re being audited.” (inaudible) …500 dollars worth of bills in the mail and 

prove that you did not do these. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: I’m sorry sir. You’re time is up. Our next speaker is Mr. Devin Wohlwend. 

Mr. Wohlwend, if you’d give us your name and residential address. 

 

DEVIN WOHLWEND: Devin Wohlwend 202, 49th St. SE, in Canton. Why, what do you want out of any of 

this. What is your purpose? What is your goal? Start with that. Do you want to make to make this city better? I 

would hope so, I would think so. How do we do that? Is the best way to do that really to just… keep taking 

money from the citizens, however it maybe. Maybe your trying to take more fees from me, which I have to pass 

on to all of the good people around here. I don’t want to do that. I want to be able to provide a better, cheaper 

option for everybody. And it’s getting more and more difficult. If you want things to be better, if you want good 

housing cheaper, make it easier for us. If you want things to actually turn out better, work with us. Instead of 

trying to make level, after level of problems and hassles for us. Say “Hey, this is a property that needs work,” 

“Maybe this person isn’t coorporating with us, I know you’ve done well, how about you go and talk to this 

person. Here’s some contact info maybe you can buy that.” I’ve heard of that happening in other cities. At least 

on the on small scales and it has been very successful for them. Why can’t we do that here? Why can’t actually 

work with the community. Let’s work together. We don’t need to have us… us here in the community verses 

you up there. It doesn’t need to be us verses you. We can work together and solve these problems together. If 

we keep figting amongst ourselves, we’re just going to be fighting. A war never helps anyone. It needs to be… 

if we really want things be it needs to us working together. Not fighting against each other. Consider that for 

any future law or legislation that you may pass. Thank you. 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you Mr. Wohlwend. Our final speaker tonight is Ms. Sierra Mason. 
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SIERRA MASON: Sierra Mason, 2110 Market. I honestly don’t know where to start uh…I said last week and I 

finished off last week with uh… you know we need to make this place… make Canton a place where you know, 

the system that operates within our communities are actually functioning. But today, everybody else took it a 

step deeper. I mean (inaudible) that everybody’s right ya’ll need to work with us, but working with us starts 

with understanding. Working with us means coming into our homes and looking at the things that were shown 

on that board… on that screen. If means actually seeing what… the kind of things that Chris Smith and Nate 

Cooks see in their communities. I heard somebody at the end of the meeting last week, I believe it was Sacco, 

uh… he said, “Well, my community doesn’t look like that.” I know. That’s why we’re here, because I need you 

to understand what my community looks like; because I live next to an abandoned house and another house 

that’s doing things that I don’t even want… to… phathom what could be going on in that house.  I’m petrified 

to even have my daughter in my home. I shouldn’t get a call from my mother on a Friday afternoon when she 

knows I’m going to pick my daughter up, because she… because she’s at home and my neighbors are acting 

such a fool that it’s not even safe for me to bring my child home. So, let’s talk about the environment. I can’t 

imagine what that house looks like, but the landlords… they can’t… I mean… they’re hands are being tied by 

fees and other properties. I mean I can’t even imagine how many things you have to neglect trying to deal 

with… you know Building Codes and dealing with our… our government. I mean people who are literally 

stating that they want to be here, they have a desire to be in Canton, but they don’t want to be in Canton, not 

because of the place that Canton is, but because of the systems that operate within our community. It’s a 

problem. I’ve been saying since was thirteen years old, everybody talks about how much they Canton, how 

much oh I Canton wait to get out of Canton, I’m so sick of Canton, I can’t wait until I’m grown I want to leave. 

When are going to start making Canton a better place? When are we going to start making Canton a place that’s 

not just downtown, and the Football Hall of Fame, but all of our communities? A place where our children, who 

are in the ghettos, can still go outside and play and… where they have community centers, where they have 

playgrounds that are actually safe? When are we going to do that for Canton? Because the people who are in out 

communities… they’re trying. But the folks who don’t, the people who are getting the two hundred and some 

thousands dollars a year, y’all don’t get it. Come live a day in my neighborhood. Come live a night in my 

house, because I promise you would crying telling somebody to come pick you up if you didn’t have a way to 

get out.  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Ms. Mason. And thank you to all of our speakers.  

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Miscellaneous Business. And I asked is there any 

Miscellaneous Business any wants to bring before the body? Yes, Ms. Crystal Smith. 

 

MEMBER CRYSTAL SMITH: (Inaudible) So, I just wanted to say uh… we’re grateful for the Grand Jury 

indictment of the two Canton PD officers, but I have to recognize that this represents a fork in the road our city. 

On one hand we can use this as an excuse to do nothing. Claim that you know… the system has run it’s course. 

Sit back and wait for something else to happen. Or on the other hand we can use it as a learning experience to 

move forward. Justice is not just letting this one case go before a judge. I think the way that we really should 

honor the memory of Mr. Tyson and some of the other victims uh… is to make real change. That’s why I’m 

announcing today uh… Police Reform Bill that will address the accountability, civilian oversight, and recruit, 

retention of good officers. Our city can’t continue down this path. And this legislation has been in the works for 

a few months. And I just wanted to bring that to your attention. That I have been working to do that and I hope I 

can get some support for that. I also do want to say that, this is not an attack on Law Enforcement because I 

have a tremendous amount of repect for Law Enforcement. There are some great cops uh… some great officers 

out there. And we do need out officers and I do support them. So, but we do need change. And I know I’m a 

new councilwoman, but I do want to do the right thing. So, we’ll discuss that (inaudible). Thank you.  
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PRESIDENT PRO TEM MARIOL: It’s been moved and seconded to adjourn. Madam Clerk, roll call vote, 

please. 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Eleven yeas, Mr. President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Motion carries. Meeting is adjoirned, thank you. (Gavel falls) 

   

ADJOURNMENT TIME: 7:48 PM 

 

ATTEST:    APPROVED:  

 

 

 

JILL M. WOOD  KRISTEN BATES AYLWARD 

CLERK OF COUNCIL                                          PRESIDENT  

 

 


